
   

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 

Accommodation is Provided Upon Request 

 

Please Turn Off Cell Phones – Thank You 

 

The City of McCleary is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

La ciudad de McCleary es un proveedor de igualdad de oportunidades y el empleador. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

McCleary City Council 
 

AGENDA 

 

January 22, 2014 
 

7:00 City Council Meeting 
 

Flag Salute 

Roll Call 

Public Hearings:  

Public Comment:  

 

Minutes: (Tab A) 

Mayor’s Report/Comments:  

 

    

Staff Reports: Dan Glenn, City Attorney (Tab B) 

 Todd Baun, Interim Director of Public Works (Tab C) 

 Staff Reports (Tab D) 

 

 

Old Business: Ecology Revolving Loan for General Sewer Plan (Tab E) 

 

 

New Business: Amended Energy Conservation Agreement (Tab F) 

 Utility Service Improvement Costs (Tab G) 

 Gray & Osborne Amendment No. 6 (Tab H) 

 Jon Hinton, Gray & Osborne, Engineering Contracts (Discussion) 

  

Ordinances:  

 

 

Resolutions:  Power Rate Increase (Tab I)  

   Ecology Revolving Loan for General Sewer Plan Resolution (Tab J)   

  

 

Vouchers  

Mayor/Council Comments 

Public Comment 

Executive Session  Potential Litigation 

Adjournment 

Agenda January 22, 2014 1



                                CITY OF MCCLEARY

                      Regular City Council Meeting

                   Wednesday, December 4, 2013

ROLL CALL AND FLAG SALUTE Councilmember's Schiller, Reed, Ator, Catterlin and Peterson.

ABSENT Mayor Dent was absent. Mayor Pro Tem Ator Chaired the meeting.

STAFF PRESENT Present at the meeting were Wendy Collins, George Crumb, Paul Nott, John Graham, Randy 
Bunch, Christiane Mercer, Colin Mercer, Todd Baun and Dan Glenn.

MAYOR'S COMMENTS Mayor Dent addressed the Council and community by speakerphone. He apologized for 
missing the meeting again but wanted to inform the Council he is suffering from cancer and is 
still controlling the government from the administrative side. His memo states he will not cut 
anything he won't have to. Wendy and George are working as his agents and can be 
contacted. He is not threatening to close down the police department. He wants everyone to 
try to relax and have a good meeting tonight. He wished everyone a good meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT Helen Lake said she is upset the City didn't know they were in trouble. She questioned the 
property purchases and the police vehicle purchases. Helen Lake read from a page-long list of 
questions she prepared. Because the list contained items requiring research, Wendy Collins 
asked her for a copy of her list so she could research the questions and call her when she is 
prepared with responses.

Megan Wilkerson stated her concerns over a memo Mayor Dent wrote that made drastic 
statements about closing the library and museum if the levy fails. She wanted to know if those 
things will really happen. Wendy Collins responded stating the Mayor put out another memo 
addressing some of her concerns. Dan Glenn explained one of the options for financial relief 
would be a levy lift and explained the process. Councilmember Catterlin added that he was 
informed a levy lift is only good for one year and would cost approximately $1.48 per $1000. 
He also commented that nobody wants to close the library or the police department. He 
believes it's important the community knows what's going on and that we have to look down 
the road. He feels we need to find what level of service would be offered and at what cost, 
before making any decisions.

Steven Friederich, Editor of the Vidette, stated he was bothered by the Mayor's comment in 
his last memo about dismantling the police department. He thinks it is ridiculous that the 
Mayor was not present at the meeting to answer questions.

Councilmember Schiller commented that he has been asking what would police contracting 
for services cost and has not had any response. He has not received any facts about 
contracting services and the cost for running a levy. Councilmember Catterlin agreed that they 
wanted to know the contracting cost before asking for a levy. 

MINUTES APPROVED It was moved by Councilmember Catterlin, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to 

approve the minutes from the November 13, 2013 and November 20, 2013 meetings. 

Motion Carried 4-0.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT Dan Glenn shared his appreciation for MRSC and their support. He briefly described the 
services they provide. Councilman Catterlin has also found them very helpful.

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
REPORT

None.

JANITORIAL CONTRACT The Council agreed to have staff put the janitorial cost back in the budget and disperse if fairly 
throughout the funds and not just in current expense.

2014 BUDGET DISCUSSION Councilman Catterlin explained the budget process and how if one fund goes bankrupt, the 
whole city goes bankrupt. He said that is why they are very concerned about current/expense. 
Dan Glenn explained the process of how a city looks for solutions to bring a fund in the red 
back into the black and avoid bankruptcy. Interfund loans can be made but have to be paid 
back with interest. City's work hard to find alternatives in salvaging a depleting fund.

Tab A - Minutes January 22, 2014 2



Councilman Schiller asked what Dan Glenn considers a surplus. Mr. Glenn responded it is 
dependent on what is needed in the foreseeable future. Mr. Schiller asked if it is a judgment 
call and Councilman Catterlin stated he does not know how you could know what is ahead as 
a foreseeable need. In his opinion, the reserve fund is for capital improvements and 
emergencies. He added that a fund isn't being managed very well if it has to pull from the 
reserve account for normal daily operating expenses.

Terry Franklin asked if the line for other utility taxes were from the city utilities and it was 
affirmed they are. She believes the utility taxes are too high. She made additional comments 
regarding the high wages of the union employees, especially light and power. She said the 
City employees are not feeling the pain of other companies like the Simpson Mill. 
Councilmember Schiller stated the Council does not have the privilege to negotiate union 
contracts.  

Helen Lake stated there are a lot of people losing their jobs

Councilmember Schiller added that this is a bandaid for the 2014 budget. We will still have the 
same issue for 2015.

The Museum utilities will no longer be paid by the city. The original contract did not include the 
utilities. Mayor Dent took office, he was approached by Elsie Franklin about the City paying for 
the utilities because they were struggling. This was a verbal agreement and did not change 
the original contract. Mayor Dent had to include the cut because it is covered by current 
expense and two employees were losing their jobs over the state of the fund and another 
employee is having a stipend cut. Councilman Catterlin spoke to Mr. Carnell and he said if the 
museum closes, the house would go back to the Carnell family. He added that Tammy Antilla 
commented they may have to close the museum anyway because they can't  find enough 
volunteers.

Councilman Catterlin asked Wendy Collins if the transfers in to current expense were 
changed. They now reflect $55,000 will be transferred from both current expense reserve fund 
and light and power. Previously, all $110,00 was budgeted to come out of the current expense 
reserve fund. Wendy Collins responded by stating the Mayor had originally budgeted 
$120,000 to be transferred from light and power to the current expense fund for 2013. This 
transfer has not been made and may not be needed for the current year. Due to this fact, the 
Mayor decided to drop the amount of transfer from the current expense reserve fund for 2014 
from the original amount in an effort to help sustain the reserve fund. 

Councilman Schiller is frustrated over the transfers for the past four years. He also is upset 
over the purchasing of two police cars last year. He reminded the council the transfers have 
been budgeted the past few years just to stay afloat. John Graham stated the two cars that 
were replaced had over 150,000 miles on them and they were originally used sheriff cars. 
Sergeant Graham did some research and discovered only five police cars have been 
purchased in the last thirty years.

Chris Mercer asked if the cuts in the budget were to cut one police officer, the police clerk and 
cut the building official down to 8 hours to be able to balance the budget. The Council agreed. 
It was also stated the museum utilities were being cut. Helen Lake added the building official 
hours did not affect Colin's eight hours for his regular job, it only affected the out of class 
hours he receives for acting building official.

LEMAY CONTRACT Dan Glenn confirmed the rates will go into affect on February 1, 2015. The item was tabled 
until the next meeting for Council's review. The City has to publish the rates to give 
appropriate notice to the residents.

APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS Accounts Payable vouchers/checks approved were 37273 - 37314 including EFT's in the 
amount of $77,157.91

It was moved by Councilmember Reed, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to 

approve the vouchers. Motion Carried 4-0.

PUBLIC COMMENT Helen Lake asked if the employees took one day off without pay, would that help? Wendy 
Collins replied it would be minimal because the majority of the employees are spread out 
throughout the funds and the employees that would come of current expense, where we are 
short, are police employees, court and very little from other employees. The other funds are 
not in jeopardy.

Tab A - Minutes January 22, 2014 3



EXECUTIVE SESSION At 7:57 PM, it was moved by Councilman Schiller, seconded by Councilmember 

Peterson to go into an executive session to discuss potential litigation for 15 minutes 

per RCW 42.30.110. 

The executive session ended at 8:07 PM. No action was taken.

Jeff Catterlin wanted to acknowledge thanks to Wendy Collins for her outstanding job. A lot 
has fallen on her shoulders. He has dropped in on her a number of times and she's always 
been helpful. Brent Schiller stated this fix this year is only a band aid and will not correct the 
deficit. We need to start working on permanent fixes. Wendy Collins stated we need to 
promote future business in the City.

Councilman Schiller stated this is a community of 1500 people. When infrastructure goes bad, 
how does 1500 people pay union contract wages to change a water line. We have to raise 
utility rates to pay for those fixes and it falls on the residents.

MEETING RECESSED It was moved by Councilmember Catterlin, seconded by Councilmember Schiller to 

recess the meeting at 8:15 PM. The next meeting will be December 11, 2013 at 7:00 PM. 

Motion Carried 4-0.

Tab A - Minutes January 22, 2014 4



                                CITY OF MCCLEARY

                      Regular City Council Meeting

                   Wednesday, December 11, 2013

ROLL CALL AND FLAG SALUTE Councilmember's Schiller, Reed, Catterlin and Peterson. Councilmember Ator arrived at 7:05
PM.

ABSENT None.

STAFF PRESENT Present at the meeting were Wendy Collins, George Crumb, Paul Nott, John Graham, Randy 
Bunch, Christiane Mercer, Colin Mercer, Todd Baun and Dan Glenn.

                                    PUBLIC HEARINGS

PUBLIC HEARINGS ON 
MARIJUANA MORATORIUM 
AND MEDICAL MARIJUANA 

DISPENSARIES AND 
COLLECTIVE GARDENS

The Public Hearing opened at 7:01 PM. Dan Glenn stated the current moratorium runs out 
at the end of the year. The issues keep getting more complex. Joy Iverson asked if there was 
a limit on how many moratoriums the council can pass on this subject and Dan Glenn 
responded no as long as there are appropriate reasons for the decision. The legislature still 
has a lot of work to do on this subject and Dan is hoping they will have something in place by 

next spring. The Public Hearing ended at 7:06 PM.

MINUTES APPROVED None.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT None.

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
REPORT

None.

MAYOR'S COMMENTS Mayor Dent apologized for the sensationalism he has caused. He wants to make sure 
everyone understands how bad things theoretically could be. He said the City itself is not 
broke, it is the current expense fund that is in bad shape. The investment funds are part of the 
budget total, not separate. He said he is not going to impact the museum or the library in this 
budget other than the museum utilities. He added that current expense would not be in as bad 
of shape as it is if he hadn't discovered the fraud that was happening when he took office.

The City also pays $90,000 a year to take care of a LEOFF1 retiree and the money comes 
right out of the police fund. This is something that is unavoidable and comes right off the top 
of the fund. The Mayor is eliminating one police officer and the police clerk. After that he will 
evaluate the performance and the value of other employees that may be impacted if he has to 
make further cuts. He said that is just a reality and he has to keep the city running. He will not 
declare the city bankrupt and said it will be a cold day in hell before he would do that. He will 
research police contracting next year. The budget he is proposing tonight is the best budget 
he can provide.

MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
DISPENSARIES & COLLECTIVE 

GARDENS

Tabled.

Ben Ator arrived at 7:05.

LEMAY CONTRACT It was moved by Councilmember Catterlin, seconded by Councilmember Reed to adopt 

Resolution 664 relating to public services; establishing and confirming fees; repealing 

Resolution 651, and providing for effective dates. Resolution Adopted 5-0.

ORDINANCE NO. 799 
MAIJUANA MORATORIUM

It was moved by Councilmember Catterlin, seconded by Councilmember Schiller to 

adopt Ordinance 799 extending the moratorium upon medical marijuana collective 

gardens and dispensaries and establishments involved in the sale, manufacturing, 

distribution, or use of marijuana imposed pursuant to the provisions of ordinances 793 

& 797. Roll call taken in the affirmative. Ordinance Adopted 4-0. 

Tab A - Minutes January 22, 2014 5



BUDGET PUBLIC COMMENTS Helen Lake thanked Wendy Collins for contacting her to respond to her list of questions from 
the previous meeting. She said the answers made sense and she now understands things 
better and is willing to share with others. She urged the Mayor to please pay the museum 
utilities. Pauline Martin, McCleary Chamber of Commerce and owner of the Subway, has been 
talking to Tammy Antilla about coming up with a plan to take care of the museum utilities 
through the Chamber. She said there are options to use it as a chamber and a visitor center 
that can be considered. 

Officer Randy Bunch asked if court would be cut. The Mayor said he will be going into 
negotiations with Elma for combined court services. Paul Nott asked if we combined the 
courts, would it be a substantial savings. Mayor Dent is hoping it can save the city a fair 
amount and Dan Glenn added that an analysis will need to take place before any real figures 
can be presented. 

The Mayor was asked by a resident why he did not address the dire state of the budget sooner 
like he stated he will do next year. The Mayor responded that the cash balance was not bad 
this year and was not recognized as being dire until we started budgeting. Councilmember 
Schiller asked about the sewer fund balance because it looks really healthy. 

Steven Friederich, Editor of the Vidette, asked what the impact will be on each customer for 
the Lemay increase. The rates are posted in the packet online for public to view and a notice 
will be published in the Vidette. The rate increase is scheduled to begin February 1, 2014.

Helen Lake asked if the sewer fund will be going up too and Mayor Dent stated the utilities will 
be going up 3% across the board and the utility taxes will remain the same. Helen was glad 
the 20% increase in water is over. Councilmember Catterlin commented that the 20% 
increase was for well improvements and that is why he is adamant about not using reserve 
funds for day to day expenses. If money had been steadily put into the reserve funds over the 
years, the city would not have had to increase the rates so high to pay for the improvements. 
Instead, we could have drawn from the reserve funds and saved the enormous rate increases. 
Helen Lake asked if the reason the rates went up is because of the fraud theft. She was 
informed the fraud did not impact the utility rates. Councilmember Schiller reminded her she 
has been at every meeting and should know this. The Mayor emphasized the rate increases 
were not to recover fraud. 

Councilmember Catterlin stated the budget this year uses $110,000 from reserves and 
transfers to balance the budget. He added, "Many of you that know me, know I don't favor 
using reserve funds to pay for day to day expenses. Reserves should be used for 
emergencies and capital improvement projects, therefore, before we vote on this budget", he 
addressed Mayor Dent and stated, "I need your word the Council will be included in 
preparations and negotiations for the levy and that we will start that process well before the 
levy is run so the voters will have all the information they deserve". Mayor Dent commented 
yes, that is correct and he has no problem with that. He told the crowd that Councilmember 
Catterlin is referring to the police maintenance and operations levy they plan on running. The 
city does not want to run it the same time as the school levy, which will run in February, so we 
will probably run ours in September and then rerun it in November, if we have to.

Councilmember Catterlin added that before they run the levy, he wants to let the voters know 
how much their taxes will increase before they vote on a levy to keep our police department at 
what level of service they want. Also, if the levy fails, they need to know what we can afford for 
the level of service they desire. Mayor Dent remarked that Councilmember Catterlin, and 
himself, may disagree on what is more cost effective between the City run police department 
or contracting with the County. Councilmember Catterlin does not want the voters to make a 
vote based on fear. Mayor Dent does not want to lose the police department. Councilmember 
Catterlin added he also wants the council to be included in searching out solutions for next 
years budget. He asked the Mayor if he has his word on these things. Mayor Dent replied that 
he will give his word that he will discuss these things but he must realize that the budget 
comes from the administration. He doesn't mind talking about it but the budget comes from 
him. He has no objection to this and the Clerk is always willing to work with the council too. 

Councilmember Schiller stated he and Councilmember Catterlin have been very vocal about 
this budget and he would like to hear from the other three councilmember's what their 
comments are and what their take is on this budget. Councilmember Peterson stated he has 
been quiet because this is new to him and it's been difficult for everyone to go through when 
you start with nothing and end up with nothing. For him, it's been confusing for him until it's 
down in writing and he can see it. He thinks it's a good budget and we might as well take it. He 
believes it will be worse next year. 

Tab A - Minutes January 22, 2014 6



Councilmember Reed commented he has a good feeling about the administration of the city. 
He thinks the people that have done the work on this budget know what they are doing. 
There's been some adjustments and he thinks Councilmember Catterlin has been privy to a 
lot of that. Councilmember Catterlin added that the reason why he is asking the Mayor to let 
them be a part of the team is so that we don't have a crisis and so we don't get backed into a 
tough corner next fall. Mayor Dent commented he always thought they were a part of the team 
but in government there are separation of powers doctrines. 

Councilmember Ator responded he thinks staff worked hard on the budget and has it where it 
will work for them and it will be okay.

Mayor Dent was asked by a resident what his level of service is for the police department. 
Mayor Dent replied that currently he has four officers and it will be cut to three officers next 
year, however, if things get better, he will bring an officer back. Councilmember Catterlin 
added that in comparing level of services, if a levy fails, we will have to take the amount of 
revenue that current expense will have and appropriate it for law enforcement when going into 
negotiations with the county. He won't dispute the fact it will probably be for a lesser level of 
service but we have to take the offer to the voters so they will know what they are voting on.

Pauline Martin stated this is all new to her and questioned the lay off's and running the levy. 
Councilmember Catterlin explained the levy lift restrictions and why we will be running one in 
September. Mayor Dent said he is holding on for Halo Steel to come in, he just doesn't know 
when. Pauline asked if the levy fails, will we not have a police force. Mayor Dent does not 
know the state of the budget later this year. Councilmember Schiller responded that current 
expense is taking from other funds to balance the budget. Pauline wants to know what other 
ideas the City has to increase revenues. Mayor Dent replied that current expense has a hard 
time finding revenues to support the budget and the best way to increase them is for growth to 
take place in the city. Pauline stated as a business owner, after losing the hospital and other 
businesses, she is cautious about doing too much with Elma and losing more dollars to Elma 
that should stay in McCleary. She loves McCleary and wants to do whatever it takes to keep 
McCleary going.

Councilmember Schiller asked about the money remaining in the sewer fund because 
$55,000 is borrowed from light and power and they do not show as much ending cash. Todd 
Baun pointed out the amount left in the sewer fund is for the bond loan payment. Mayor Dent 
added this is not a line item budget, it is a fund level budget. 

Terri Franklin stated people are not moving into town because the rates are so high and told 
the Council they have to start addressing this issue.

BUDGET ORDINANCE NO. 800 It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Reed to adopt 

Ordinance 800 adopting a budget for the calendar year 2014  and establishing salaries. 

Roll Call taken with 4 in the affirmative and Councilmember Schiller voting against. 

Ordinance Adopted 4-0.

Councilmember Schiller made a final comment stating they had twenty days until this budget 
had to be passed, and truthfully, there hasn't been 100% effort in this budget tonight.

JUDGE BLAUVELT 
APPOINTMENT

It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to 

reappoint Judge Art Blauvelt. Motion Carried 5-0.

APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS None.

PUBLIC COMMENT Mayor Dent wished everyone a nice Christmas.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

MEETING RECESSED It was moved by Councilmember Catterlin, seconded by Councilmember Reed to 

adjourn the meeting at 7:52 PM until the first meeting in January and cancel the 

December 25, 2013 meeting. The next meeting will be January 8, 2014 at 7:00 PM. 

Motion Carried 5-0.

Tab A - Minutes January 22, 2014 7



Tab B - City Attorney Report January 22, 2014 8



Tab B - City Attorney Report January 22, 2014 9



Tab B - City Attorney Report January 22, 2014 10



Tab B - City Attorney Report January 22, 2014 11



Tab B - City Attorney Report January 22, 2014 12



Tab B - City Attorney Report January 22, 2014 13



Tab C - Interim Director of Public Works Report January 22, 2014 14



Tab C - Interim Director of Public Works Report January 22, 2014 15



 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Mayor Dent 

From: Colin Mercer 

Date: January 3, 2013 

Re: December Building Department 

 

Activities 

 Submit copies of permits issued to Grays Harbor County Assessor’s Office. 

 Lexar Homes has one home in the finishing stage. 

 High Definition Homes has two homes in the drywall finishing stage. 

 New Garage permit at 330 E. Beck is in the framing stage.  

 House numbering letters were sent out recently and 6 addresses have been installed as a result. 

 Year End permit file archiving.  

 

Nuisance Issues in Progress  

 150 Wildcat Drive garbage nuisance, bank has been notified waiting on clean up. 

 126 W Simpson owners have been notified about falling shingles and the sign should be removed per the sign 

code since the premises is no longer occupied by that tenant. 

 119 S. 3
rd

 St. signage violation, not removed after business is closed. 

 

Building Department Activity 

ACTIVITY 
MONTHLY 

TOTALS 

YEAR TO 

DATE 

TOTALS 

ACTIVITY EXPLANATION 

Customer Service 33 521 

Answer building department related questions in 

person or by phone, meeting with potential 

applicants. 

Building Permits Issued 1 37 
Remodels, new construction & additions, both 

residential and commercial. 

Plan Reviews Performed 1 16 
Reviewing plans for building code and municipal 

code compliance. 

Inspections Performed 14 202 
Field inspections, writing of corrections or 

approving work. 

Finals or Certificates of 

Occupancies 
0 6 

Performing of the final inspection & issuing of 

certificate of occupancy allowing use of the 

structure. 

Complaints Received 0 13 

Investigate and address citizen or staff reported 

issues, obtain resolution or acceptable 

compromise.   

Nuisance Letters Sent 6 60 

Formal notice from the City informing citizens of 

violations and providing expectation of the City 

for compliance. 

Lemay’s Garbage Letters 

Sent 
4 106 

Formal notice from City after notification from 

Lemay that service has been stopped. 

    

Building Department 

Revenue 
$266.50 *$13663.68  

Funds generated by the Building Department from 

permits, inspections, reviews etc. 

 * Year to date total includes corrected amount due to not reporting review fees accurately each month. 

 

 

 Tab D - Staff Reports January 22, 2014 16



 

Conservation Program 

Month 
Applications 

Received 

Conservation 

Permits Issued 

Rebates Paid 

This Month 
Total Rebates Paid To Date 

November 2 2 993.00 $2393.00 

December 1 0 70.00 $2463.00 

 

Comments: 

 

High Definition Homes is planning to apply for additional building permits after the first of the year as the two homes 

currently under construction will be close to final after the 1
st
 of January. They anticipate applying for 5-6 new single 

family residence permits next year. 

 

Lexar Homes has no current plans for additional permits until they have a buyer for an individual lot and home plan. 

 

Phase 2 of the Beehive Harmony House project is scheduled to begin demolition the week of December 16th and then 

continue with the construction immediately after demo is complete. 

 

Dragt Development has expressed interest in starting to build new homes on the Cedar Heights Plat in the spring, building 

two homes at a time.  

 

All of the contractors currently building in McCleary have expressed concern regarding the reduction in Building 

Department availability. Their comments to me have been that they may choose to build in other jurisdictions where they 

can obtain a more timely response to their permit and inspection requests. 

 

  

Tab D - Staff Reports January 22, 2014 17



Tab D - Staff Reports January 22, 2014 18



Staff  Report 

 

To:      Mayor Dent 

From: George M. Crumb, Chief of Police 

Date:  January 17, 2014   

RE:     For January 22, 2014 Council Meeting 

______________________________________________________________________  

 

SUMMARY OF POLICE INCIDENTS / ACTIVITIES: 
The below listed information are calls or contacts received by McCleary Police Officers either generated by 

Grays Harbor County dispatch 911 service, citizen reports, call in, contacts, or other officer generated 

incidents:  

 

Close out for 2013 as 2556 Incident Histories Reported 

 

* 0091 Incident histories reported as of time of this report since new year.  

-Speeding                                                

-DWLS 

-Speeding in School Zone               

-Burglary 

-Fire Response’s                                

-Disorderly Conduct/Obstructing 

-Traffic Stop’s                                     

-Harassment  

-Weapons Offense 

-Agency Assist’s                               

-Drug Incidents  

-Animal Complaints 

-Curfew Violations  

   

-Welfare Checks 

-Trespass (Criminal)   

-Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Circumstance 

-Police Information or Referrals 

-Alcohol Offense             

-Traffic Offense/Reckless/Hazard 

-Found-/Lost Property Reports 

-Motorist Assist/Citizen Assist 

-Theft Reports 

-Death, report 

-Juvenile Problems/Run-a-way/-missing 

-Malicious Mischief 

-Warrant Arrests/Search Warrant/Confirm 

-911 Open Line or Hang Up 

-Domestic Violence 

-Citizen dispute-/Civil-/Vio Pro Order- 

-D.U.I. 

-Audible Alarm 

-Subject Stop 

-Traffic Accident 

-Noise Complaints   

-Fraud   

-Sex Offense 

-Parking Complaint

-Suicide Attempt                                                                   -Vehicle Prowl 

-Insurance violation                                                              -No Valid Operator’s License (NVOL) 

 
Discussion: Open:. 

The department will lose one police officer on 013114, and has lost ½ time police clerk.  

 

Council Members Present: ALL…. Mr. Catterlin-Position 1,  Mr. Reed-Position 2,   

                                                         Mr. Peterson-Position 3,  Mr. Shiller-Position 4,  

                                                         Mr. Ator-Position 5.   

Mayor Dent:  Present / Not Present   __________________ 

 

Officer Reporting:  Chief Crumb _________________              __________________ 

Tab D - Staff Reports January 22, 2014 19



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Dent 

From: Todd Baun, Public Facilities Manager 

Date: January 17
th

, 2014 

Re: December Report 

 

 

The following items are the highlights of what the Public Works crew have been working 

on during the past month. 

 

• I still have received no contact from Mr. and Mrs. Gravatt on the storm water 

issue affecting their property located at 311 W. Simpson Ave.  We are in a 

holding pattern until we receive the legal documents that have been given to them 

by the city.  The last I have heard anything on this issues is August 24th, 2010.           

• The crew is still filling in many potholes throughout the City.    

• We are continuing our maintenance of our equipment and vehicles.     

• We are still looking to replace a section of 2” water line on 3
rd

 Street.  This line is 

currently an iron pipe that has failed multiple times. We will be waiting for a good 

weather window to accomplish this task.    

• We are inspecting our manholes and catch basins in our stormwater system.  We 

will make repairs as necessary. 

• We are still flushing several hydrants weekly to help with water quality. 

• When we have a weather window, we will be replacing a catch basin that is 

failing on 3
rd

 and Mommsen. 

• The cemetery now has cement corner markers on all sections of the cemetery.  

This assists the crew in marking correct locations of cemetery plots.   

• We are also inspecting our manholes in the sewer system.  

• We are locating “lost” water valves and bringing them up to grade.  

• Hydrant flushing will be the week f Jan. 20
th

.      

• And as always, we are trying to keep up on all our routine and daily maintenance 

of the parks, cemetery, streets, water, sewer, storm and buildings. 

 

If you have any questions, don’t be afraid to ask.  If you see something that needs 

attention or have any ideas that you would like me to pursue, my door is always open, so 

please come and talk to me. 

Tab D - Staff Reports January 22, 2014 20



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Dent 

From: Kevin Trewhella, Water & Wastewater manager 

Date: January 7, 2014 

Re: City Hall Rent 

 

 

Recently we had our drinking water tested to check for VOC’s , which are manmade 

chemicals. The tests were performed by Water Management Laboratories.  I am happy to 

report that the lab test show the VOC’s were at non-detectable levels. 

 

Last week I had a conversation with a member of Department of Ecology.  We were 

discussing upsets at small waste water treatment plants here in Western Washington.  The 

person told me that they had seen several small plants upset by somebody carelessly 

dumping something down the drain.  Example: 1 Gallon of Anti-Freeze  dumped down 

the drain, can wipe out our entire treatment plant here.  Please remind your friends and 

neighbors how important it is to be careful and not just dump leftover Fats, Oils, Greases 

and other chemicals they have around the house. 

 

Currently at the WWTP we have 2 Police cars that have been surplused to the city.  

Sitting there they are of no value to the city.  We have 2 options; Auction or scrap.   

 

 

Staff Recommendation:   

 

I recommend we send them out for scrap and put the funds we receive into current 

expense. 

 

 

Action Requested:   

 

Give me permission to have these cars towed out for scrap. 

           

Tab D - Staff Reports January 22, 2014 21



 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Mayor Dent 

From: Colin Mercer Webmaster 

Date: January 3, 2013 

Re: December Website & Help Desk 

 

Re-Occurring Website Activities 
 Council Agenda/Packet posted online. 

 Council Minutes posted online. 

 

New Website Activity 
 Posted the Preliminary Budget and Public Hearing Notices on the website. 

 Post and remove the budget workshop notice. 

 Post the Marijuana Moratorium Public Hearing announcement.  

 Post the revised Preliminary Budget and the Mayor’s Message. 

 Posted Fire Department Santa Food Drive and Route Map. 

 Post adopted Budget. 

 Post new Utility rates and connection fees for 2014. 

 Post all 2014 Council Meeting dates to the events calendar. 

 Post all 2014 Holidays to the events calendar. 

 Posted the new Court Clerk hours. 

 Posted the 2014 Development Fee Schedule. 

 

Additional Tasks 

 Research different City’s regulations on Food Truck vendors and zoning restrictions. 

 Research GH County Health department regulations on Food Truck vendors. 

 

Help Desk Activity 

 

Month 

 

Number of Incidents 

Reported 

Staff 

Reported / Closed / 

Open 

Citizen 

Reported / Closed / 

Open 

September 10 4 / 7 / 31 6 / 7 / 10 

October 14 7 / 6 / 32 7 / 9 / 8 

November 3 2 / 6 / 28 1 / 9 / 0 

December 5 2 / 6 / 24 3 / 3 / 0 

 

 

Website Comments: 
 

None this month 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Tab D - Staff Reports January 22, 2014 22



 
Website Traffic          December 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Top visited pages shown only) 

Section Page Views Percent of Total 

Default Home Page 3379 39.4% 

Events Calendar 564 6.58% 

Agendas and Minutes 523 6.1% 

City Jobs 338 3.94% 

City Departments 278 3.24% 

Utilities 257 3% 

Mayor and Council 230 2.68% 

Conservation Program 183 2.13% 

Police 173 2.02% 

Tell Us What You Think! 157 1.83% 

2008-14 Budget 133 1.55% 

Search Results 129 1.5% 

Municipal Code 121 1.41% 

Public Facilities  114 1.33% 

Administration 109 1.27% 

City Forms & Documents 108 1.26% 

Water / Wastewater 102 1.19% 

Fire 97 1.13% 

Chamber of Commerce 87 1.01% 

City Photos 85 0.99% 

Light & Power 84 0.98% 

Municipal Court 74 0.86% 

Planning Department 72 0.84% 

Development Services / Building 68 0.79% 

Helpful Links 64 0.75% 

Bear Festival 60 0.7% 

FAQ's Page 58 0.68% 

Home Page 47 0.55% 

Code, Ordinances & Standards 46 0.54% 

Interlocal Agreements 44 0.51% 

Data Page 34 0.4% 

Previous Years Council Minutes 26 0.3% 

9.54 Malicious Mischief, Reckless Burning, Fire 23 0.27% 

Bear Festival Photos 23 0.27% 

65th Anniversary Photos 21 0.24% 

Flood Photos 2009 19 0.22% 

Christmas Photos 2007 18 0.21% 

Previous Years Council Agendas 17 0.2% 

Community Center 16 0.19% 

Park Project Photos 15 0.17% 

Title 5 Business Taxes, Licenses and Regulations 13 0.15% 

1.12 Official Newspaper 12 0.14% 

Title 17 Zoning 12 0.14% Tab D - Staff Reports January 22, 2014 23

https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bB28061DC-BEE2-4C7E-AB18-ACBF7C7A161E%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b0ABA423F-6F2D-4539-A1D7-C62681243CBF%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bA6D36659-431D-4D42-B43A-671FE1C40148%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bD89E0083-8870-4C43-A675-6CE6424B0E2D%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b8A45F904-308A-4DDC-9D6E-95F2185ACC09%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b2F17A6E9-6C9A-43CB-B97D-E6EA41A15685%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bDC20172B-67E9-4434-86BF-160BDCDE8318%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bC0AEB3EF-38D4-4F39-A8B6-9E0AD97613D0%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b9A893D42-0EDF-4C0B-BC2F-335EE3D8E9B5%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bA5DEE3A0-3E9D-45D7-BB56-BABD0991AED5%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b1948DA92-D021-499F-A168-6717AEBA3133%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bE14B00A2-B3B6-416C-8859-D43C2762EDB5%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bA353538D-B09D-4515-9742-A6F51481BA10%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b010F778E-33A0-401B-BB3C-7E8B66B444CD%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bA1BF8691-0917-4B4E-9C9D-D7DD044510C4%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bCAF3B3FA-696A-4B0F-B441-C68ADF931009%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bDD03B79A-2BBA-452D-A83E-7DEB4510D261%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b8078F24E-E563-4167-A203-50823D320CEE%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bD2A30BC8-E1CD-4FAB-992A-16E3D955CB5C%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b73D18EDE-4C70-4099-8FEB-6AEC756B4211%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bF9C27CCA-7880-486E-BD63-02DD75A352CF%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b53EE3068-1A3F-4D79-89D3-48A407F0DA30%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b47982D03-1A0A-4ABD-B029-32470EBD4601%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b08A77A55-420B-4CA1-B8A7-592C5AF2CFF9%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b16587989-AB3D-40DE-AD14-52F45942F4A2%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b17C2DB75-69C9-4B4F-AF33-EE2CAC56D7C2%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bDBE3D2D5-9249-4FEC-B844-90A0785177A3%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bAEA6A4FA-6EDC-4426-B1A5-D3023DB4AD00%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bAF9D765E-69CC-44A1-8EE0-322589F1B63D%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b88D1021C-5B59-4DC2-BD36-9741529F3873%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b1AC92914-6318-4F63-89FF-53C8886E5406%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b6041A847-84BE-49DF-86A5-0D63C36D99B2%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b811A2453-FE9C-4AA0-9454-BE8E02008BCA%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b20C4B7C3-0F1F-48F2-9070-087B95561DD2%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bE826C197-7887-4FAA-83CE-EDA999FE502B%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bCCC7F0CC-D8C3-470F-A97F-1010568A75AF%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bBDA119FE-692A-47E9-BAE3-E016ED736E48%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b272B1F2B-F0DA-42C6-AA22-55B36921C8E3%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b98F52F81-A571-4A90-95AB-5C47FBB332C5%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7bFDDA45A1-845A-49C0-8665-97ED62E9F751%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b821D9B2C-D6B1-4D12-AB18-1A88DE86A30D%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1
https://mcclearywa.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7b95D58F94-2DE2-450B-B8BD-CA65C7374C63%7d&BeginDate=12/1/2013&EndDate=12/31/2013&report=1


Tab E - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 24



Tab E - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 25



Tab E - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 26



Tab E - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 27



Tab E - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 28



Tab E - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 29



Tab E - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 30



Tab E - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 31



Tab E - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 32



Tab E - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 33



Tab E - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 34



Tab F - Amended Energy Conservation Agreement January 22, 2014 35



Tab F - Amended Energy Conservation Agreement January 22, 2014 36



Tab F - Amended Energy Conservation Agreement January 22, 2014 37



Tab F - Amended Energy Conservation Agreement January 22, 2014 38



Tab G - Utility Service Improvement Costs January 22, 2014 39



Tab G - Utility Service Improvement Costs January 22, 2014 40



Tab G - Utility Service Improvement Costs January 22, 2014 41



Tab G - Utility Service Improvement Costs January 22, 2014 42



Tab G - Utility Service Improvement Costs January 22, 2014 43



Tab G - Utility Service Improvement Costs January 22, 2014 44



Tab G - Utility Service Improvement Costs January 22, 2014 45



Tab G - Utility Service Improvement Costs January 22, 2014 46



Tab G - Utility Service Improvement Costs January 22, 2014 47



Tab G - Utility Service Improvement Costs January 22, 2014 48



Tab H - Gray & Osborne Amendment No. 6 January 22, 2014 49



Tab H - Gray & Osborne Amendment No. 6 January 22, 2014 50



Tab H - Gray & Osborne Amendment No. 6 January 22, 2014 51



Tab H - Gray & Osborne Amendment No. 6 January 22, 2014 52



Tab H - Gray & Osborne Amendment No. 6 January 22, 2014 53



Tab H - Gray & Osborne Amendment No. 6 January 22, 2014 54



Tab I - Resolution - Power Rate Increase January 22, 2014 55



Tab I - Resolution - Power Rate Increase January 22, 2014 56



Tab I - Resolution - Power Rate Increase January 22, 2014 57



Tab I - Resolution - Power Rate Increase January 22, 2014 58



Tab I - Resolution - Power Rate Increase January 22, 2014 59



Tab I - Resolution - Power Rate Increase January 22, 2014 60



Tab I - Resolution - Power Rate Increase January 22, 2014 61



Tab I - Resolution - Power Rate Increase January 22, 2014 62



Tab I - Resolution - Power Rate Increase January 22, 2014 63



Tab I - Resolution - Power Rate Increase January 22, 2014 64



Tab J - Resolution - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 65



Tab J - Resolution - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 66



Tab J - Resolution - Ecology Revolving Loan January 22, 2014 67


	Agenda
	Tab A - Minutes
	Tab B - City Attorney Report
	Tab C - Interim Director of Public Works Report
	Tab D - Staff Reports
	Tab E - Ecology Revolving Loan
	Tab F - Amended Energy Conservation Agreement
	Tab G - Utility Service Improvement Costs
	Tab H - Gray & Osborne Amendment No. 6
	Tab I - Resolution - Power Rate Increase
	Tab J - Resolution - Ecology Revolving Loan

